
  

 
 
 
 

Chowan County Board of Commissioners 
Regular Meeting 

Monday, October 19, 2020 
Chowan County Public Safety Center 

305 West Freemason Street 
6:00pm 

 
AGENDA 

 
The meeting room will be open to the public and public seating will be set up to adhere to social distancing 
guidelines.  
 
*If the room reaches maximum capacity, a call-in number is provided below for anyone who wishes to call in 
to listen to the meeting remotely. Those participating remotely who wish to submit public comment, please 
see instructions in the agenda below. 
 
To listen remotely call: 1-408-418-9388 
Meeting ID Number: 132 882 7866 
Passcode: 246926 

 
Regular Meeting 

  
a. Call to Order  
b. Pledge   
c. Invocation  Commissioner Cummings 

 
1. Approval of Draft Agenda 

 
2. Public Comment 
 
Public comment may be taken digitally on all items, with the following guidelines:   
-  any public comment must be sent in by 5 p.m. the day of the meeting via email 
to Susanne.stallings@chowan.nc.gov  OR by calling  252-482-8431 x1 (NO LATER THAN 5:00pm) 
and leaving a voicemail 
-  must state which agenda item you are commenting on, or if it is for informal discussion 
-  must be no more than 350 words. 

The Clerk will read public comments into the record during the meeting. 

 

 

 

mailto:Susanne.stallings@chowan.nc.gov


 

 

3. Consent Agenda 
All items on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and may be enacted by one motion. If a 
County Commissioner requests discussion on an item, the item will be removed from the Consent 
Agenda and considered separately. 

 
a. Approval of Minutes 

Attached are the minutes of the September 21, 2020, September 29, 2020, October 5, 2020 and 
October 6, 2020 CIP meetings for the Board’s review and consideration.  
 

b. FY 2020 Budget Clean-up Amendment 
The Board will review BA 1920-082 which is the final clean up amendment for the FY2020 
budget. 
 

c. Tax Refund/Release Report 
The Finance Officer has condensed the most current refund release report into a spreadsheet. It is 
attached for your review and consideration. 

 
4. COVID – CARES ACT Relief Fund  

 
Update 
Finance Officer Cathy Smith will provide the Board with a report on the COVID CARES ACT relief 
funds received to date and any expenditures of these funds. The updated report will be handed out at 
the meeting. 

 
5. Budget Amendment 

The Board will consider the following budget amendments: 
 
BA2021-013 
BA2021-014 
BA2021-015 
BA2021-016 
BA2021-017 
BA2021-018 
BA2021-019 
 

6. Emergency Management Items 
Emergency Management Coordinator Cord Palmer will provide the Board with the following items: 
 
Juneve Vessel in Edenton Bay 
Mr. Palmer will provide the Board with an update on the grant application to remove the vessel along 
with a cost estimate for removal. 
 
Non- Congregate Shelter Agreement 
The Board will consider an agreement between Chowan County and North Carolina Emergency 
Management that will allow the County to claim FEMA reimbursement through NCEM when non-
congregate sheltering is utilized. 
 
 
 
 



 
 
Debris Contract 
The County contract for debris hauling will expire in December 2020. North Carolina Emergency 
Management has recognized FEMA’s reluctance for reimbursement of debris cleanup following a 
disaster because many of these contracts do not meet FEMA requirements. Because of this NCEM 
has established a statewide debris hauling and monitoring contract that meets all federal purchasing 
requirements. The Board is asked to consider approval of the use of the state contracts for debris 
hauling and monitoring.  
 
Evacuation Zone 
Emergency Management Coordinator will provide the Board with information on the Evacuation 
Zones which were established for Chowan County. 
 
Water Tower Corral Space Lease 
The Board approved at a previous meeting the installation of corrals for the purpose of attaching 
antenna. The Board will consider a one year lease with Net-Change and Inteliport with the final 
approval from the County Attorney’s Review.  
 

7. Information Technology - Electronics Disposal 
Attached is a list of computer equipment that has been removed from service. The equipment has 
aged and depreciated out of fixed asset status. Staff is requesting authorized disposal of the assets 
through electronic disposal. All hard drives have been removed for security. 
 

8. Extension Report to the People 
Due to COVID restrictions, Extension staff and volunteers will not host the Commissioners for dinner 
at the Extension Office but instead this year will come to the Commissioner meeting to provide a 
video report of their “Annual Report to the People”. 
 

9. Finance Officer Report 
Finance Officer Cathy Smith will provide the Board with financial reports through the month of 
September 2020.  

 
10. External Board/Committee Report 

Board members are asked to report on the activities of the external boards to which they have been 
appointed. 
 

11. Manager’s Report 
County Manager Kevin Howard will update the Board on any pending matters. 

 
12. Timely and Important Matters 

 
13. Closed Session 

It is recommended that the Board go into closed session in accordance with NCGS 143-318-11 (a) (6) 
personnel.   

 
14. Adjourn 



 
 

Regular Meeting 
Monday, September 21, 2020 

Chowan County Public Safety Center 
305 West Freemason Street 

6:00pm 
 
 

This meeting was recorded. A copy of the recording is in the meeting file labeled September 21, 2020. 
 
Present Chair Patti Kersey, Commissioners Greg Bonner, Ron Cummings, Don Faircloth, Larry 
McLaughlin and Bob Kirby. 
 
Commissioner Ellis Lawrence was absent. 
 
Staff present County Manager Kevin Howard, Board Clerk Susanne Stallings and Finance Officer 
Cathy Smith 

 
Call to Order 
Chair Kersey called the regular meeting to order and led everyone in the pledge. 
 
Commissioner Faircloth then offered the invocation. 
 
Approval of Draft Agenda 
Ms. Stallings noted the budget amendments under Item 9 were numbered incorrectly. The attachments 
in the packet are however correct. She noted that BA2021- 008, BA2021- 009 and BA2021- 010 
should be listed on the agenda. She also noted a request to add BA2021- 011. 
 
Chair Kersey noted that there is a recommendation to table Item #6 to the November 6th meeting.  
 
Commissioner Bonner moved to approve the agenda with recommended amendments. Chair Kersey 
asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (6-0). 
 
Public Comment 
Ms. Stallings noted that no public was signed up to speak and none was submitted. 
 
Consent Agenda 
All items on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and may be enacted by one motion. If a 
County Commissioner requests discussion on an item, the item will be removed from the Consent 
Agenda and considered separately. 
 

a. Approval of Minutes 
Attached are the minutes of the September 8, 2020 meeting for the Board’s review and 
consideration.  
 

Commissioner Faircloth moved to approve the consent agenda as presented. Chair Kersey asked for all 
in favor, the motion passed unanimously (6-0). 
 
 

 



COA Update 
COA President Dr. Jack Bagwell introduced COA Board members Travis Burke, Travis Gilliam and 
Edenton Campus Dean Robin Zinsmeister. He noted that Commissioner Chair Patti Kersey is also the 
Chair of the College of the Albemarle Board. He then provided the Board with an update from COA. 
He provided the Board with a handout on the community impact report for the Edenton-Chowan 
Campus.  A copy of the report is in the meeting file labeled September 21, 2020.  
 
Dean Zinsmeister shared information on the truck driver training program which is projected to start 
on November 2nd.  She thanked the Board for their support of the Edenton-Chowan Campus and 
programs.  
 
Chair Kersey thanked Dr. Bagwell and Dean Zinsmeister for their work. 

 
COVID – CARES ACT Relief Fund  

 
Update 
Finance Officer Cathy Smith provided the Board with a report on the COVID CARES ACT relief 
funds received to date and any expenditures of these funds. The updated report was handed out at the 
meeting and a copy of the report is in the meeting file labeled September 21, 2020. The projected 
funds balance is $143,754. 

 
Laptop Purchase 
Board Clerk Susanne Stallings provided the Board with two quotes for purchasing laptops utilizing 
COVID monies for the Board of Commissioners to use for remote meetings and automated agendas. 
Several of the iPads are currently aging out and will need to be replaced soon. She noted that many of 
the current iPads do not support current apps and also prohibit the Board from accessing word or other 
documents easily. During the COVID Pandemic not all Commissioner iPads were compatible with any 
of the online meeting platforms and Commissioners had to come in to the Public Safety Center to use 
County laptops or utilize their personal laptops for connectivity.  The first quote is for a laptop with a 
touch screen. The second quote is for the same laptop but without touch screen. There will be an 
additional cost for Microsoft Office. She noted the total cost for laptops with the touch screen option 
would be $12,321.26. The non-touch screen option is $11,860.38. 
 
Commissioner Kirby moved to approve the purchase of the laptops with touch screen and pen option. 
Chair Kersey asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (6-0). 
 
Commissioner Cummings asked what will happen with the iPads. Ms. Stallings stated that the 
Planning Board has inquired but the Board may also consider surplus of the iPads. 

 
Planning Items 
Public Hearing – Text Amendment 
This item was tabled until November 2, 2020. 

 
Planning Board By-Law Amendment 
Planner Brandon Shoaf provided the Board with draft bylaw amendments as recommended by general 
statutes and the Planning Board. He noted that Staff feels these rules of procedures and bylaws are a 
necessary part of the 160D statutory update process.  He said that under the list of things that must, 
and may, be amended at the County level are bylaws for advisory boards. The Planning Board is such 
a board.  Advice from the UNC School of Government says that the County may adopt bylaws for the 
Planning Board, based on the new statutes. He stated he thinks that it's good to have these bylaws and 
will also be proposing the Board of Adjustment have something similar. He said he took what was 



done some years ago, that were rules of procedures, updated those based on the GS and other 
jurisdictions examples and created what you have attached here. If adopted, new statutes state they 
must be posted on our webpage. He added that at their regular meeting in September, the Planning 
Board, unanimously voted to recommend these Rules of Procedure and Bylaws for the Board’s 
approval. 
 
A copy of the recommended by-laws is in the meeting file labeled September 21, 2020. 
 
Commissioner Bonner moved to approve the by-laws as presented. Chair Kersey asked for all in favor, 
the motion passed unanimously (6-0). 

 
Report from EMS Response Committee 
Mr. Howard provided the Board with a PowerPoint of the EMS Assessment Response Committee 
report. A copy of the PowerPoint is in the meeting file labeled September 21, 2020.  
 
Below are the highlights from the report: 

Ownership 

Recommendation:  paper or electronic customer satisfaction surveys  

Response:  Our intent is to conduct a survey this fall and have results tabulated by the end of 
December. 

Organizational Structure 

Recommendation:    Each shift needs a functioning supervisor to handle daily activities and 
operations in the absence of administrative personnel.  This process also creates a career ladder. 
(retention tool) Detailed job descriptions and policy/procedures should be developed in order for this 
process to be successful. 

Response:  As part of the FY 20-21 budget the board approved creating 4 shift supervisor positions. 
Job descriptions for the positions have been created and procedures are being developed to interview 
and select the shift supervisors which includes a panel to assist in interviewing the potential 
candidates. Our intention is to have the positions filled in early October. 

Strategic Planning 

Recommendation:  Chowan County should explore the opportunities for a thorough Strategic 
Planning process for the EMS Department. *Example: 
https://www.vbems.com/download/executive/EMS%20Strategic%20Plan.pdf 

Response: The department has developed 0-2, 2-5, 5-10 and 10-15 year plans. (See Attachment C).  
The plans will be updated annually as part of the budget process 

Accounts Receivable   

Recommendation:  Perform a thorough evaluation of the vendor’s accomplishments compared to 
other vendors to ensure that you are maximizing collections for the contracted percentage of your 
contract.  This is a very competitive business and the vendors are eager to get new customers. 

Consider including a statement in the Budget Ordinance that all EMS fees such as mileage are set at 
“130% above the Medicare Allowable Rate”.  This prevents the potential loss of revenue between 
changes to the Federal Reimbursement rates and the local Board approval process or budget cycle. 

  

https://www.vbems.com/download/executive/EMS%20Strategic%20Plan.pdf


Response:  Fees were adjusted as suggested with the adoption of the FY 20-21 budget. EMS staff 
worked with billing company to improve how paperwork is filled out by providers.  Currently there is 
not a back log due to paperwork being filled out incorrectly. Tax office has taken over management of 
accounts in the State debt setoff system and will be handling delinquent accounts.  The Tax Director 
has access to more resources to collect delinquent funds. 

Compensation Package 

Recommendation:  Perform a very thorough assessment of the benefits package available to 
employees.  Make improvement changes where appropriate and highlight the benefits package to 
current and prospective employees in a simple and easy to understand format. 

Recommendation:  Conduct a salary survey of the region to ensure that the county is competitive. 
Consider sign-on bonus, longevity pay, part-time incentive pay (+ 15%), and paid educational 
programs in an effort to improve recruitment and retention.  Be sure to recognize EMS staff as well as 
911 tele communicators, during EMS Week, for the contributions they provide to the agency. 

Recommendation:  Review the following for additional best practices for recruitment and retention. 

*Michigan Center for Rural Health Study Presentation  

Response:  We had intended to make a recommendation during the FY 20-21 budget process but due 
to issues with Covid19 impacts on revenue it will be discussed as part of the FY 21-22 budget process. 

Recruitment & Hiring 

Recommendation:  Develop high quality relationships with teaching institutions such as the 
Community Colleges.  Place major emphasis on participation in the educational process such as guest 
lectures, presentations, presenting, clinical internships, etc.  Prospective employees need to see your 
commitment to the educational and clinical processes. 

Recommendation:  Develop a program to hire high quality Basic EMTs and guide/assist/mentor them 
through the educational process to obtain Paramedic credentials.  This process can develop very loyal 
employees who feel committed to the department and the community. 

Response:  We are able to get a list of credentialed people in our area from NCOEMS. We are 
currently doing direct recruitment to qualified individuals in the area.  Also working with current 
employees to further their credentialing. 

Employee Training & Development 

Recommendation:  The importance of a Training/Preceptor/Mentorship component for new hires is 
often understated.  This action was probably not avoidable; however, it needs to be phased out as new 
employees are hired into the system.  Furthermore, a long term reassignment could have negative 
effects on recertification of credentials, continuing education, and overall clinical care.  Online 
continuing education does not adequately fulfill the needs of a progressive system.  Continuing 
Education was the #2 most identified weakness on the employee surveys. 

Response:  One of the new shift supervisors will be responsible for scheduling training.  One current 
employee received training certification.  

 

Chair Kersey stated she would recommend that staff prepare a matrix that shows the outcome of the 
new accounts receivable protocol to see any improvements. 

 

Mr. Howard stated that this will be shown in the budget process. 

Chair Kersey thanked each of the committee members for their work. 

http://www.mcrh.msu.edu/programs/EMS%20Recruitment%20and%20Retention%201.2019.pdf


Commissioner McLaughlin asked about the strategic plan response regarding partnering with the local 
school for a program. He asked if the Director has spoken with Casey Bass about this initiative.  

EMS Director Colin Ryan stated he has worked on this with the COA EMS Director. He noted that a 
new director has been hired and that he will look into getting program in place going forward.  He 
stated that some neighboring Counties have this program and he feels it is important to get it right. 

Mr. Howard noted that Sheriff Edward Basnight and Deputy Andy Bunch were present to discuss the 
911 portion of the study. 

Deputy Bunch stated that the Sheriff’s office would like for the Board to know they wish to renew the 
proposal to look at salaries in the 911 and Sheriff budgets. He stated that the current salaries are 
holding Chowan back with regards to recruitment and retainment. He stated that there is a desire to 
keep salaries competitive.  

Chair Kersey asked if the items in the report were addressed individually. 

Deputy Bunch stated that certifications are being obtained and many of the items in the report were 
already in the works when they met with the group. 

 
Resolution - Domestic Violence Awareness Month 
Chair Kersey noted that the Board is asked to consider a resolution from the Albemarle Hopeline 
which proclaims October 2020 as Domestic Violence Awareness Month.  
 
Commissioner McLaughlin moved to approve the resolution as presented. Chair Kersey asked for all 
in favor, the motion passed unanimously (6-0). 
 

PROCLAMATION FOR DOMESTIC VIOLENCE AWARENESS MONTH 
 

OCTOBER 2020 
 
WHEREAS, domestic violence includes not only physical abuse, but also mental abuse, emotional 
abuse, financial abuse, isolation, and sexual violence; and 
 
WHEREAS, intimate partner violence accounts for 15% of all violent crime; and 
 
WHEREAS, 1 in 4 women and 1 in 9 men experience severe intimate partner physical violence, sexual 
violence, or stalking; and  
 
WHEREAS, according to the North Carolina Coalition Against Domestic Violence, there were 57 
homicides attributed to domestic violence in North Carolina in 2019, and 44 to date already in 2020; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the Chowan County Board of Commissioners recognizes the significant impact of 
domestic violence on individuals, families, children, schools, and workplaces in our community; and 
 
WHEREAS, by working together, we can raise awareness and break the cycle of violence in order to 
build communities that are safe for everyone; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, I, Patti Kersey, Chair of the Chowan County Board of Commissioners, do 
hereby proclaim October, 2020, as “DOMESTIC VIOLENCE AWARENESS MONTH”, and 
commend its observance to all citizens. 

 
Budget Amendment 



Finance Officer Cathy Smith provided the Board with the following budget amendments: 
 
BA2021-008 

Cooperative Extension
4H United Way 1,061.50                 
4H United Way 1,061.50               
Community Benefit/Health 2,000.00                 
Community Benefit/Health 2,000.00               
Grow to Eat Grant 1,500.00                 
Grow to Eat Grant 1,500.00               
Master Food Grant 1,000.00                 
Master Food Grant 1,000.00               

Cubbie Water Buddies Grant 3,100.00                 
Cubbie Water Buddies Grant 3,100.00               

Balanced 8,661.50                 8,661.50               

Justification:

Account Number Account Description
 Revenue 

(Inc+/Dec-) 
 Expense 

(Inc+/Dec-) 

11-3495-372-00
11-4953-445-00
11-3495-381-00
11-4953-481-00
11-3495-382-00
11-4953-452-00
11-3495-384-00
11-4953-454-00

Recreation
11-3612-499-01
11-6132-450-01

To amend the 2021 budget to include grant funding from Vidant 
Health and United Way.  

BA2021-009 

Capital Projects
Contribution from Capital Reserve 24,409.00               
Library Repairs 24,409.00             

Fund Balance 24,409.00               
Transfer to Capital Project 24,409.00             

Balanced 48,818.00               48,818.00             

Justification:

To amend the 2021 budget to include repairs made by AR Chesson to 
the Library.  This was approved by the BOCC at the 09/08/20 meeting.

Capital Reserve
33-3990-990-00
33-9800-980-32

Account Number Account Description
 Revenue 

(Inc+/Dec-) 
 Expense 

(Inc+/Dec-) 

32-3810-033-00
32-8100-606-00

 
BA2021-010 



Social Services
APS/CPS Assessments 10,349.00               
APS/CPS Assessments 10,349.00             

Balanced 10,349.00               10,349.00             

Justification:

Account Number Account Description
 Revenue 

(Inc+/Dec-) 
 Expense 

(Inc+/Dec-) 

12-3531-230-15
12-5380-539-98

To amend the 2021 budget to include CARES Act funding for APS/CPS 
Assessments.

 
 
BA2021-011 

Social Services
Salaries - Regular (2,000.00)             
Interpreter Services 2,000.00               

Balanced -                           -                         

Justification:
To amend the 2021 budget to include additional Interpreting services 

for non-english speaking clients.  The initial budget request was $3,000 
but the approved budget was $1,500.

Account Number Account Description
 Revenue 

(Inc+/Dec-) 
 Expense 

(Inc+/Dec-) 

12-5310-121-00
12-5310-329-00

 
 
Commissioner Kirby asked if there is a mandate to provide interpreters at DSS. 
 
Ms. Smith stated the County is required to pay for their services. She stated she was not sure if it was 
mandated. 
 
Mr. Howard stated he can look into it, that interpreters are required for 911. 
 
Commissioner Kirby requested to separate the budget amendments. He then moved to approve 
BA2021-008, BA2021-009 and BA2021-010. Chair Kersey asked for all in favor, the motion passed 
unanimously (6-0). 
 
Commissioner Bonner moved to approve BA2021-011. Chair Kersey asked for all in favor, the motion 
passed (4-2 Kirby and Cummings). 

 
Finance Officer Report 
Finance Officer Cathy Smith provided the Board with financial reports through the month of August 
2020.  A copy of the report is in the meeting file labeled September 21, 2020.  

 
Contract with the Town of Edenton 
Ms. Smith provided the Board with a contract with the Town of Edenton for assistance with data entry 
in the Finance Office. 



 
Mr. Howard stated that there is only one accounts payable employee in the Finance Department.  He 
stated the employee has had to be out of the office. The Town of Edenton uses the same software as 
the County and are willing to enter invoices to assist the County. He stated that currently there is no 
need to contract this support, however if the need arises again, he would like to have a contract in 
place where they can do something. He stated this contract expires November 2020. He stated this 
would only be used for short term. He asked that the Contract be approved based on review by the 
County Attorney. 
 
Commissioner Faircloth moved to approve the contract based on review and approval by the County 
Attorney. Chair Kersey asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (6-0). A copy of the 
draft contract is in the meeting file labeled September 21, 2020. 

 
External Board/Committee Report 
Chair Kersey stated that the Board members are asked to report on the activities of the external boards 
to which they have been appointed. 
 
Commissioner Kirby stated that the Albemarle Commission has discussed the regional monies 
received for COVID. He stated that of the 10 member Counties it appears that only Chowan and 
Pasquotank are thinking outside the box for projects. He stated that Pasquotank is also working on a 
broadband intuitive to install corrals at their water tower. 

 
Manager’s Report 
County Manager Kevin Howard updated the Board on the following matters: 
 

- Fishing Pier bathroom materials are in place 
- Library they are waiting on a start date for this project 
- COA parking lot he will have bids on the next meeting agenda 
- Ag Building bids are due this Friday 
- Info on COVID Grants for small businesses and nonprofits will be on the next meeting agenda. 

 
Timely and Important Matters 
 
¼ Cent Sales Tax Referendum 
Commissioner McLaughlin stated that he has looked at the sample ballot for the November election. 
He stated that there have been questions from the public about the referendum. He has shared 
information with the press and constituents about the monies from the referendum being designated by 
resolution of the Board to the John A. Holmes High School project.  He stated that voting will soon 
begin and he feels the Board needs to get the word out.  He stated the law does not allow the wording 
on the ballot to note the funds are for the high school project. He stated that he hoped to get the Board 
of Education out supporting the referendum as well. He noted that ¼ cent is about $292,000 based on 
the 2017 collections. He stated that this type of tax is paid by all residents and visitors.  He stated he 
hoped the Chowan Herald would get an article out about the referendum to help with educating the 
public. He noted that the law restricts the County from utilizing County funds to promote the 
referendum however Commissioners are able to promote it. He stated he planned to write a letter to 
the paper on the matter and encouraged Board members to use social media to get the information out 
to the public.  
 
Chair Kersey stated she agreed it is very important to get the word out on what the sales tax is to be 
used for. She stated that Commissioners can advocate for the sales tax. She stated she planned to email 



the Board of Education Chair with the hopes the Board of Education has a plan to assist with 
educating the public.  
 
Mr. Howard stated that County funds cannot be spent to educate the public but the County can put out 
information on what the sales tax is to be used for. 
 
Frozen Positions 
Mr. Howard noted that the 2020-21 budget includes frozen positions in Building Inspections and 
Housekeeping. He stated that he will allow Maintenance to advertise their vacancy soon because they 
are down staff in that department.  He noted the monies are in the budget already for this position. 
 
Adjourn 
Commissioner Bonner moved that the meeting be adjourned. Chair Kersey asked for all in favor, the 
motion passed unanimously (6-0) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________________  ______________________________ 
Patti F. Kersey, Chair      Susanne Stallings, Clerk 
 
 



 
 

Special Joint Meeting 
Tuesday, September 29, 2020 

Cashie Convention Center 
118 County Farm Road 

Windsor, NC. 
 

7:00pm 
 
 

This meeting was recorded. A copy of the recording is in the meeting file labeled September 29, 2020. 
 
The Chowan County Board of Commissioners met in a Special Called Meeting with the Bertie County 
Board of Commissioners, Martin County Board of Commissioners and the Bertie-Martin Regional Jail 
Commission on Tuesday, September 29, 2020 at 7:00 p.m. at the Cashie Convention Center, 118 
County Farm Road, Windsor, NC. 
 
ASSEMBLY 
 
Chowan County Commissioners and Staff in attendance: Chair Patti Kersey, Commissioner Ron 
Cummings, Commissioner Bob Kirby, Commissioner Larry McLaughlin, Commissioner Don 
Faircloth, Commissioner Greg Bonner, Clerk to the Board Susanne Stallings, and Sheriff Edward 
Basnight.  Commissioner Ellis Lawrence and County Manager Kevin Howard were absent. 
 
Martin County Commissioners and Staff in attendance: Chairman Tommy Bowen, Vice Chairman 
Dempsey Bond, Jr., Commissioner Elmo “Butch” Lilley, Commissioner Ronnie Smith, County 
Manager David Bone, Clerk to the Board Jessica Godard , Finance Officer Cindy Ange, and Sheriff 
Tim Manning. Commissioner Joe R. Ayers was absent. 
 
Bertie County Commissioners and Staff in attendance: Chair Ron Wesson, Commissioner John Trent, 
Vice Chair Tammy Lee, County Manager Juan Vaughan, and Clerk to the Board Sarah Tinkham. 
Commissioner Ernestine Bazemore and Commissioner Greg Atkins were absent. 
 
BMR Jail Commission and Staff in attendance: Chair/Martin County Commissioner Dempsey Bond, 
Jr., Vice Chair/Bertie County Commissioner John Trent, Martin County/Director John MacDonald, 
BMR Jail Administrator Terrence Whitehurst, and BMR Jail Deputy Administrator/Secretary Lydra 
Freeman. Bertie County/Director Dianne Bazemore and Martin County/Director William Stalls were 
absent. 
 
Bertie County Chair Wesson, Martin County Chair Bowen, Chowan County Chair Kersey, and BMR 
Jail Chair Trent called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  
 
STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF MEETING 
 
Martin County Manager Bone stated this meeting was a culmination of two years of discussion and 
efforts. County Manager Bone recalled in October of 2018, Chowan County Manager Kevin Howard 
sent a letter asking Bertie and Martin Counties if the counties were willing to consider the feasibility 
of Chowan County joining the Bertie-Martin Regional Jail.  The managers of the three counties met 
several days later to discuss the matter.  Additionally, the Bertie-Martin Regional Jail (BMRJ) Board 



met several weeks later and expressed a desire to consider the expansion of BMRJ to include Chowan 
County.   
 
County Manager Bone further stated an Inter-Local Agreement was drafted to document the desire of 
the Boards of Commissioners of the three counties to proceed with a study to evaluate this matter. 
Additionally, a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) document was drafted and distributed concerning a 
study of this matter. 
 
The Boards of Commissioners of Martin, Bertie and Chowan Counties held a joint meeting about this 
matter on March 28, 2019.  All three counties agreed to move forward.  Interviews for the Bertie-
Martin Regional Jail Feasibility Study Consultants were held on June 12, 2019. The BMRJ Board met 
on June 13, 2019 and agreed to move forward with negotiations with Moseley Architects.  Moseley 
drafted a scope of services, and the proposal was approved by each county’s Board of Commissioners.   
 
Moseley Architects and their partners in the financial analysis, Davenport Consultants, were present at 
tonight’s meeting to present the findings of the study.  With Moseley Architects was Todd Davis and 
Dan Mace.  Ms. Kim Hamby of the Timmons Group (the civil engineering firm that conducted the site 
review) was also present.  Finally, with Davenport Consultants was Mr. Ted Cole. 
 
Martin County Manager David Bone stated no decision was expected at this meeting.  Each Board was 
to receive the presentation and have discussions and ask any questions afterward.   
 
Presentation of Jail Study Report 
 
A copy of the Jail Study Report is in the meeting file labeled September 29, 2020. 
 
Mr. Dan Mace with Moseley Architects reviewed a general agenda for the presentation.  The agenda 
included team introductions, needs assessment and bed projections, development options (one with 
Chowan County and one without), Davenport financial report, and time for questions.  Mr. Mace 
stated the information represented a lot of time and effort as staff looked at the current facility.  The 
projections were based on five years of data, and he stated the projections did not reflect 2020, due to 
the year not being over and the effects of COVID-19 on the jail populations.  
 
Mr. Todd Davis with Moseley Architects provided information about bed projections to try and 
identify growth needs for the jail, to determine how to move forward. Figures discussed included the 
inmate average daily population at BMRJ and historical admissions to BMRJ.  Other figures discussed 
included BMRJ average length of stay and projected admissions.  
 
Mr. Davis stated information had been provided from the jail from the previous five years in order to 
conduct this study.  BMR Jail was rated for 90 beds. Charts showed that BMRJ had exceeded its rated 
capacity (what the state rates the jail facility at when it is built) and its operational capacity (classify 
and separate offenders by law) consistently over the past 5 years.   
 
Mr. Davis reviewed historical admissions to BMRJ and the projected admissions through 2045.  Based 
on current jail data and the county population census, the number of admissions shown followed 
similar growth as general county population growth.  Mr. Davis further explained determining the 
average length of stay (ALOS) was critical to bed-space projections.  He said the longer the ALOS, the 
greater the need for bed-space.  Mr. Davis reported the ALOS of BMRJ was much lower than many 
other counties, but staff was encouraged to stay on top of that to keep that number as low as possible. 
 



Next, Mr. Davis explained the BMRJ calculation of peaking ratio, which helps determine when 
additional space may be needed.  The next category discussed was classified (ADP increased by 20%) 
and peaked projection, which predicted the BMRJ forecasted population using the highest admission 
rate. These figures indicated the BMRJ facility needed to be expanded to approximately 140-142 beds 
to accommodate 2045 needs going forward. 
 
Next, Mr. Davis discussed the inmate bed projections for Chowan County jail only, stating the 
information was very similar to the BMRJ information.  The numbers almost matched Bertie and 
Martin populations, just on a smaller scale.  Mr. Davis said Chowan County’s population was also 
decreasing, but not as rapidly as Bertie or Martin counties. Mr. Davis discussed inmate average daily 
population, historical admissions, projected admissions, average length of stay, peaking ratio, and 
forecasted population using the highest admission rate. The information discussed indicated the 
Chowan County bed needs reflected a design need of approximately 42 beds to address the 2045 
projections going forward. 
 
Mr. Davis then discussed the BMRJ plus Chowan County combined forecasted population using the 
highest admission rate.  Based on those projections, a total of 191 beds would be recommended to 
meet the classification and peaking requirements through the year 2045.   
 
Mr. Mace said he existing facility was reviewed and they made recommendations for improvement on 
the aging facility.  As population increased over time, the current facility had some things that were 
lacking.  There was a need for multiple types of housing to separate different classes of inmates.  It 
was not recommended to build a single housing using, but instead several smaller units were 
recommended.   
 
Ms. Kim Hamby of the Timmons Group discussed two charts showing separate options for expansion 
of the BMR Jail facility.  Because of the location of the jail and the condition of the surrounding land, 
expansion would have to go forward, instead of off the sides of the current structure.  Space for 
parking was considered and discussed, as well.   
 
Mr. Mace stated the core spaces of the current jail were inadequate to accommodate a proposed 
expansion.  Those inadequate core spaces discussed were intake/booking, property storage, kitchen 
area, medical area, lobby, visitation space, etc. It was recommended those things be considered as 
adding on these spaces later would be very difficult.  Option 1 showed new core spaces that were 
suggested with the expansion. Option 1 showed an addition of 101 new beds (32,000 square feet), on 
top of the current 90.  Mr. Mace explained the new proposed housing units were very staff efficient.  
There was a proposed single story 8-bed restrictive housing unit for inmates that had to be separated 
from the general population. 
 
Option 2 addressed the BMR Jail needs, with room for an additional expansion at a later date, if 
Chowan decided to join at a later date.  There was one less housing unit, and a 16-bed restrictive 
housing unit.  Option 2 included the addition of 47 new beds (24,000 square feet). The estimated cost 
of option 1 with the addition of Chowan County was $17,844,966.56.  The estimated cost of option 2 
expansion without Chowan County was $14,043,284.06. 
 
Mr. Ted Cole with Davenport Consultants was present to discuss the financial elements of the 
potential project(s).  The goals and objectives were to: 
 

• Review and summarize historical financial performance of the Commission, including 
revenues, expenses, debt service, capital investment, and reserve balances in order to develop a 
baseline financial forecast for existing revenues and expenses. 



• Develop a forward looking pro forma financial model to analyze the projected performance of 
BMRJ under the current operating profile and alternative scenarios (e.g. renovations, an 
expanded facility, operational benefits/costs of expansion, and adding Chowan County as an 
additional member). 

• Calculate the impact of member counties of different renovations and expansion scenarios both 
with and without the addition of Chowan County to the Commission. 

• Utilizing the pro forma financial model and other historical date, develop a series of “buy in 
cost” methodologies and analyses, which will provide a range of the potential “buy in” costs 
for Chowan County. 

 
Mr. Cole highlighted the historical financial performance of the BMR Jail Commission since 2015, 
discussing various line items (revenues, expenditures, new revenue available for debt service, capital 
outlay, surplus, ending funding balance).  Overall, the information showed that the BMR Jail 
Commission maintained percentage of fund balance over 30% in 2018 and 2019.  The minimum 
acceptable amount of percentage of fund balance should be at least 20% of the operating budget in 
reserves. 
 
Davenport staff was using the 2021 budget as the basis of projections. Projections would be effective 
for FY 2022 and beyond.  The fund balance should remain at 20%.  The county pro rata contributions 
based on 2019 populations were: 
 
Without Chowan County: 
Bertie County – 45.89% 
Martin County – 54.11% 
 
With Chowan County: 
Bertie County – 34.51% 
Martin County – 40.69% 
Chowan County – 24.80% 
 
Three scenarios would be discussed:  1) do nothing, 2) smaller expansion with just Bertie and Martin 
Counties, and 3) larger expansion with the addition of Chowan County. 
 
In order to account for potential increase in facility size and projected growth in the average daily 
population (ADP) of inmates, the following two expense forecasting methodologies had been 
established: 
 

• Expenses per bed: these expenses are assumed to grow in line with the bed capacity in the jail 
in any given fiscal year. 

 
• Expenses per inmate: these expenses are assumed to grow in line with the projected ADP in 

any given fiscal year. 
 
Expenses per bed and per inmate estimates were calculated based on FY 2021 budgeted expenses and 
assumed to grow at an inflation rate of 3%.  The 2021 budget was discussed, and the per bed and per 
inmate costs were about the same (approximately $31,000) in the 2021 budget.   
 
Capital Funding Assumption – for purposes of this analysis, three scenarios were analyzed based on 
Moseley’s two expansion options.  In all scenarios, construction/design was assumed to begin in FY 
2022, and construction was anticipated to be completed at the start of FY 2024.   
 



Scenario A – no expansion, no project, only showing inflation with BMRJ.  The contributions were 
projected through FY 2030.  The total contributions over the next 10 years were $3,836,488.   
 
Scenario B – Small expansion with BMRJ only without Chowan County. The projected expenses were 
$5,145,140 through FY 2030.  Scenario C – Large expansion with the addition of Chowan County. 
The projected expenses were $6,635,246.  In scenario C, it was assumed Chowan County would begin 
contributing once operations of the expanded facility began in FY 2024.  Negotiations could take place 
to have Chowan County start paying on that debt service right away, as opposed to waiting until FY 
2024. 
 
Under Scenario C, the existing members may consider buy-in compensation from Chowan County for 
joining the BMRJ Commission.  Based on fixed assets on BMRJ books, fixed assets of existing 
facility, and cash balances, the Chowan buy-in amount was estimated to be $551,441.  Other things to 
be considered were the insured value/replacement value of the existing facility, any “good will” or 
value of the existing Authority structure being established, and any incremental cost of expansion. 
 
The timing of a buy-in payment, if any, needed to be established.  There were several alternatives, 
including a single upfront payment, direct annual payments to the existing members over a period of 
time, or annual reductions in existing member contributions over a fixed period of time.   
 
Mr. Cole stated there were more in-depth scenarios available in the handouts, and staff would be 
available to answer any questions afterwards, if needed. 
 
Chowan Commissioner Kirby asked Mr. Cole to review the information regarding the per bed/per 
inmate amount on page 6 of the presentation.  He asked if the $30 per day amount was typical.  Mr. 
Davis with Moseley Architects stated that number was actually low, reporting the state of North 
Carolina had a per diem rate of $40 per day plus revenue. 
 
Martin County Commissioner Smith stated the average cost allocation per inmate was $111(+) daily.  
He reported the jail cost allocation for personnel costs was 64%, operating costs was 21%, and 
facility/indirect fees was 15%.  Commissioner Smith stated in 2019 in North Carolina, there were 
approximately 1.9 million charges.  1.6 million of those charges were misdemeanors, and only 
343,000 felonies.  He stated 85% of people in North Carolina jails were facing $2,500 or less in bonds.  
He stated there was a lawsuit in Alamance County, NC by the ACLU that may affect the entire state 
related to bonds.  Commissioner Smith reported on studies that center around bond reform and 
expressed the need for bond reform in North Carolina.  He stated there were many people in jails that 
suffer with mental illness, as well. Further, Commissioner Smith stated he was in favor of 
regionalization and collaborations, and he said there might be available money in the future to help 
with that type of operation. 
 
Bertie Commissioner Lee echoed Commissioner Smith’s comments, stating there was lots that could 
be done to keep the jail population down across the state of North Carolina.  She spoke of the 
importance of review of inmate sentences and bonds in order to keep the population down.  
 
Bertie Chair Wesson stated he supported the bond reform that Commissioner Smith spoke about.  He 
stated he had spoken with Representative Ed Goodwin prior to the meeting, and he was told the state 
of North Carolina was considering special funds for this type of project (regionalization).   
 
Commissioner Smith reiterated inmate reviews were crucial (who is in jail, why are they in jail, etc.).  
Commissioner Smith spoke about the racial disparities among inmates.  The responsibility falls back 
on the County to take care of the people in their jails.  Commissioner Smith stated there were other 



jails that had active programs to help reduce the inmate population, especially for unnecessary 
incarcerations. 
 
Chowan County Commissioner Bonner asked if the number of proposed beds in the presentation 
would be necessary and if the boards need to wait on committing to the expansion.  Commissioner 
Smith stated he felt the three counties should collaborate, no matter how many beds were proposed. 
Bertie Chair Wesson stated there was a large problem with inmates with mental illness, stating 
outpatient mental health services were less than optimal.  Many inmates were in jail solely because of 
their need for mental health services. Commissioner Trent stated that needed to be taken into 
consideration before making a final decision before spending a large amount of money on this project.   
 
Bertie County Commissioner Lee stated she was opposed with the proposed amount of money to be 
spent on new “core areas”, and she stated a different design for just housing made better sense.  The 
new dormitory was built in 1996 and the original part of the jail was built in 1982.  Commissioner 
Trent stated several years ago, around $400,000 was spent on upgrades and renovations.  He stated 
things like that needed to be thought about too, as the cost may be increased from the presented 
projections. 
 
Bertie County Chair Wesson stated the Boards should advocate for the right kinds of changes, stating 
there are people that need to be in jail, but some do not. Commissioner Smith stated statistics showed 
that if someone is in jail for an extended time, they are likely to lose employment, etc.  Once that 
person is out of jail, they were more likely to go out and commit another crime to “catch up”.  He 
voiced his concerns that pre-trial time periods were too slow, affecting the jails as well.  
Commissioner Smith again stated a collaboration between the three counties would be better 
financially, and he stated timing was key.   
 
Bertie County Chair Wesson asked Chowan County staff what the urgency was for their facility and 
what their concerns were.  Chowan County Sheriff stated the jail was approximately 40 years old and 
was not in great shape.  Their capacity was 23, but their population was typically above that (28 on the 
day of the meeting).  There were cells that had to be shut down, due to broken windows and other 
situations.  He stated the bond reform had been being discussed for years but had not happened yet.   
 
Commissioner Trent stated Chowan County had an offer from Albemarle Jail for a $500,000 buy-in 
years ago and asked why that did not happen at the time.  Chair Kersey stated that was before her time, 
and she did not have the information or a reason why that project did not proceed.   
 
Chowan County Chair Kersey asked what the next steps after tonight would be going forward.  Bertie 
County Chair Wesson stated no decision was needed tonight, but each Board should take the 
information back to make a determination soon.  Since the facility would not be available for use by 
Chowan County until 2024, the Chowan County Sheriff stated the jail would have to operate as it is, 
until the new facility was operational.  Chowan County had to spread inmates around to other counties 
to keep their jail population down. 
 
BMR Jail Board Member MacDonald stated, “We need to be proactive, not reactive”.  He stated there 
would always be people in jails, no matter what changes were made regarding bond reform and 
charges.  Even though this project would cost money, it may open doors for more funding in the 
future. 
 
Mr. Mace thanked the Boards for their time. He stated staff would be available for any further 
questions.  He said that many jails their staff evaluates have many of the same issues that BMR Jail 



was facing.  He stated whether an expansion was done or not, there were still needs that needed to be 
addressed in the current facility.  
 
Bertie County Chair Wesson asked if Martin and Chowan Counties were a part of the opioid litigation.  
Martin County Commissioner Smith stated it did not matter, because all counties would receive funds, 
even if they did not participate in the lawsuit.  He stated counties would be able to control part of their 
funding themselves, without restrictions. 
 
The consensus was to have each Board review the information presented, pass their decision along to 
the County Managers and have a decision about how to proceed by the end of October 2020.  
Discussions were had about possibly waiting until new Board Members were brought on board after 
the elections in November 2020, but the consensus was to go ahead and make a decision now with 
current Board Members.   
 
ADJOURN 

  
With no further business to discuss, Bertie County Chairman Ron Wesson adjourned the meeting at 
8:42 p.m. with no objections. 
      
    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________________  ______________________________ 
Patti F. Kersey, Chair      Susanne Stallings, Clerk 
 
 



 
 

Regular Meeting 
Monday, October 5, 2020 

Chowan County Public Safety Center 
305 West Freemason Street 

6:00pm 
 
 

This meeting was recorded. A copy of the recording is in the meeting file labeled October 5, 2020. 
 
Present Chair Patti Kersey, Commissioners Greg Bonner, Ron Cummings, Don Faircloth, Larry 
McLaughlin and Bob Kirby. 
 
Commissioner Ellis Lawrence was absent. 
 
Staff present County Manager Kevin Howard, Board Clerk Susanne Stallings, County Attorney 
Lauren Arizaga-Womble and Finance Officer Cathy Smith 

 
Call to Order 
Chair Kersey called the regular meeting to order and led everyone in the pledge. 
 
Commissioner Kirby then offered the invocation. 
 
Approval of Draft Agenda 
Commissioner McLaughlin moved to approve the agenda as presented. Chair Kersey asked for all in 
favor, the motion passed unanimously (6-0). 
 
Public Comment 
Ms. Stallings noted that no public was signed up to speak and none was submitted. 
 
COVID – CARES ACT Relief Fund  
Ms. Smith provided the Board with an update on the COVID19 funds.  A copy of the updated report is 
in the meeting file labeled October 5, 2020.   
 
Commissioner McLaughlin asked for clarification on the amounts for the small business grants where 
some got $5,000 and some got $2,500. 
 
Ms. Smith explained that the small businesses who were awarded grants on the first round were 
eligible for a second grant, so the max any business could get was $5,000. Those that got $2,500 were 
awarded a grant on the first round. 
 
Commissioner Kirby asked about the sanitation supplies and the expense for the Senior Center. 
 
Ms. Parker noted that some of the expense is for grocery supplies, trays, bags and PPE to protect those 
delivering and receiving the meals.  
 
Mr. Howard asked the Board how they would like for him to proceed. He noted that he and the 
Finance Officer needed to review the grant applications to ensure the applicants qualify. 
 
Commissioner Kirby stated that he wanted to go ahead and get the grants awarded. 



 
Commissioner Faircloth moved to authorize the expenditure of the grant funds for the small business 
and non profit applications pending Manager and Finance Officer approval.  Chair Kersey asked for 
all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (6-0). 
 
Water Department Items 
Salt Tank Replacement 
Water Director David Tawes provided the Board with quotes to replace the salt tank for the Valhalla 
Water Treatment Plant.  He noted the tank has broken down a couple of times. He stated the laterals 
have broken and there are repairs needed to the aging fiberglass. He stated he has determined now is 
the time to replace the tank. He stated he requested quotes from three different vendors and two quotes 
were received.  He noted that Daparak is the lower price at $50,214 however the tank they are quoting 
a smaller tank. He stated that Perry Fiberglass is more expensive at $57,500 but the capacity of the 
tank is what they currently have. He noted that $50,000 is in capital outlay budgeted for the tank. He 
stated they are asking for an additional $7,500 for the tank purchase.  
 
Commissioner Kirby inquired about the paint color of the tank. 
 
Mr. Tawes stated the current tank was not painted. 
 
Chair Kersey noted the budget amendment utilizes monies from the professional services line within 
the Water Fund. 
 
Commissioner Kirby moved to accept the bid from Perry Fiberglass in the amount of $57,500. Chair 
Kersey asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (6-0). 
 

 
BA2021-012 
If the above agenda item is approved the Board will also consider approval of the attached budget 
amendment BA2021-012. 
 
Commissioner McLaughlin moved to approve the budget amendment BA2021-012. Chair Kersey 
asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (6-0). 
 

Water Department
Professional Services (7,500.00)             
Capital Outlay - Equipment 7,500.00               

Balanced -                           -                         

Justification:

Account Number Account Description
 Revenue 

(Inc+/Dec-) 
 Expense 

(Inc+/Dec-) 

61-7120-192-00
61-7120-510-00

To amend the 2021 budget to increase Capital Outlay for replacement 
of the water tank at Valhalla.  No additional funding is being 

requested; Funds will be transferred from Professional Services.  
 

 
COA Parking Lot 



Mr. Howard noted that bids were due on Friday, October 2, 2020 for the parking lot extension at COA. 
Mr. Howard noted that bids were mailed to 8 contractors and the County received 5 back. He stated 
that the low bidder Whitehurst Sand Company is recommended with a bid amount of $133,301.07. 
 
Commissioner Kirby asked what the estimated budget amount was. 
 
Mr. Howard stated $150,000. 
 
Commissioner McLaughlin stated his pleasure with having multiple bids. He then moved to accept the 
low bid from Whitehurst Sand Company. Chair Kersey asked for all in favor, the motion passed 
unanimously (6-0) 

 
Ag Building Roof Replacement and HVAC Repair 
Mr. Howard provided the Board with bid information and the architect recommendation for the roof 
replacement and HVAC repairs at the Ag Building. He noted the architect estimated $490,000 for the 
project for Option 1. He noted the low bids are $378,214. He noted the budget includes a contingency 
of $30,333. He noted the low bidders were Central Heating and Air Conditioning of Kinston and 
Owens Roofing. He noted that Option1 takes the building back to its original design but corrects the 
ventilation issue. 
 
Commissioner McLaughlin asked if the CIP Committee could review the design options and bring 
back a recommendation. 
 
Mr. Howard noted that a point for consideration is the cost of materials is going up. 
 
Commissioner McLaughlin stated he wanted to feel comfortable with the decision and that the systems 
will work properly. 
 
Mr. Howard stated the Board of Commissioners selected Option1. 
 
Commissioner McLaughlin asked if insulation could be added later. 
 
Mr. Howard stated he could ask the architect and a change order could be done later if the Board 
wishes to do that. 
 
Commissioner Kirby stated his concern over changing the specs after receiving the bids. He stated he 
did not want to, not award the bid with the potential for increased materials pricing. 
 
Mr. Howard noted that Option 2 is about $160,000 more than option 1 and that included insulation. 
 
Commissioner Faircloth noted that Option 2 includes sheathing which is very expensive. 
 
Commissioner Kirby stated he did not want to slow down the project. He then moved to accept the 
proposal of $378,214 the bids from Central Heating and Air Conditioning of Kinston and Owens 
Roofing as presented. Chair Kersey asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (6-0). 

 
Public Hearing Motion 
Chair Kersey noted that the proposed text amendment to the Chowan County Zoning Ordinance  “7.05 
Requirements for Wireless Telecommunications Sites, New Wireless Support Structures or Substantial 
Modification of Wireless Support Services” that was previously advertised to be held at the September 
21, 2020 meeting was tabled to allow staff the opportunity to revise the presentation of the text to 



highlight current text and proposed amendments. Because the item was tabled, and to allow for proper 
advertisement of the new hearing date, it was recommended that the public hearing be held on 
November 2, 2020. In accordance with Article XIV of the Chowan County Zoning Ordinance, it 
would be in order for the Board to make a motion to advertise the public hearing for November 2, 
2020 and note the extenuating circumstances that exist to waive the restriction of hearing a text 
amendment outside of the Ordinance’s four designated months. 

 
County Attorney Lauren Arizaga-Womble stated the current ordinance is not in line with federal and 
state regulations because the laws have changed. She stated that the laws regarding wireless 
telecommunication towers has changed a lot in the last year. 
 
After discussion on the wording for the motion, Commissioner McLaughlin moved that extenuating 
circumstances exist to hear a public hearing outside of the ordinance requirement and that staff needs 
to update the text in accordance with federal and state regulations and noted the new public hearing 
would be held on November 2, 2020. Chair Kersey asked for all in favor, the motion passed 
unanimously (6-0). 

 
Appointment 
Chair Kersey noted that the Board will consider reappointment of the following individuals to the 
Shepard Pruden Memorial Library Board of Trustees. Both individuals are eligible and have requested 
reappointment.  

- Carlette Pruden 
- Marie Perry 

Commissioner Cummings moved to reappoint Carlette Pruden and Marie Perry to the Library Board 
of Trustees. 
 
Chair Kersey asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (6-0). 
 
Annual Report 
The Board received an annual report from the Senior Center Director Connie Parker. A copy of the 
PowerPoint Presentation is in the meeting file labeled October 5, 2020. 

 
External Board/Committee Report 
Chair Kersey asked for any external Board and Committee reports, there were none. 

 
Manager’s Report 
County Manager Kevin Howard updated the Board on the following: 

 
Project Tracking Sheet 
Mr. Howard stated that he planned to update the sheet and stated he will get another one out. 
 
Joint Jail Meeting 
Mr. Howard stated that the next step is for Chowan to meet and discuss how they wish to move 
forward. A meeting will be scheduled in the next two to three weeks. He stated he will check to 
see if the architectural firm is available if there are any questions. 
 
Sales Tax Referendum 
Mr. Howard provided the Board with a handout on the North Carolina Local Option Sales Tax. 
He noted that neighboring counties such as Martin, Hertford, Pasquotank have the local option 
in place.  He stated that an email from Dr. Sasscer on the school’s efforts to promote the tax 
has been forwarded. 



 
Jail Discussion 
Chair Kersey noted that at the joint meeting there were some Board members on the Bertie 
County Board who were not “all in” for the project.  She stated some insight on this would be 
helpful to the Board for the special meeting coming up. 
 
Commissioner Kirby stated that an agenda at the next joint meeting would be helpful to focus 
the discussion and prevent a free for all. 
 
Mr. Howard stated that a timeline will be needed. 
 
Commissioner Bonner stated the County will have to consider the cost of transporting inmates 
and weigh the benefit. 
 
Mr. Howard stated that the jail will include video visitation which will help with the 
transportation cost. He stated he agrees with the Sheriff that the jail reform legislation has been 
on the table for years and the County needs to consider the issues that they are faced with now. 

 
Timely and Important Matters 

 
Broadband 
Commissioner Kirby stated that he and Chair Kersey serve on the ECP Board and they are 
working to get support to change NC Laws regarding broadband. He sated that the FCC 
develops maps based on reporting by internet providers on existing coverage and based on the 
maps, grants are given through NCDIT to unserved zones which are census blocks.  He stated 
that the FCC map shows his residents in a served census block by Mediacom which is not 
accurate. He stated that when he contacted Mediacom to get internet service he is told they do 
not serve his area.  He asked is there a case for class action lawsuit because it appears there is 
widespread misinformation on these maps. 
 
Chair Kersey stated that the self-reporting by providers is frustrating. 
 
The County Attorney stated she would wait on any further instruction from the Board 
regarding the matter. 
 
Sales Tax Referendum 
Chair Kersey thanked Commissioner McLaughlin for his work and contact with the Chowan 
Herald regarding the upcoming referendum.  She stated that stakeholders have been asked to 
write letters of support to the paper on the referendum.  She noted the ballot does not explain 
the purpose of the referendum or the designation of the monies. 
 
Commissioner McLaughlin noted that Destination Downtown Edenton is going to purchase 
signs in support of the referendum. He stated that he plans to meet with Rotary groups on the 
matter. He urged Board members to contact the groups that they are members of to promote the 
referendum.  He stated that matching monies are needed and the proposed $300,000 from the 
sales tax is the equivalent of a 2cent property tax increase that would not have to be put on the 
tax payers. 
 
Chair Kersey noted that local businesses are putting together ads of support in the Chowan 
Herald advocating for voting yes on the referendum.  

 



Adjourn 
Being no further business, Commissioner Faircloth moved that the meeting be adjourned. Chair 
Kersey asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (6-0) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________________  ______________________________ 
Patti F. Kersey, Chair      Susanne Stallings, Clerk 
 
 



  
 
 

Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) Subcommittee  
 Meeting 

Tuesday, October 6, 2020 
Chowan County Public Safety Center 

305 West Freemason Street 
4:00pm 

 
Present Commissioners Ron Cummings and Larry McLaughlin 
 
Commissioner Faircloth was absent. 
 
Ex Officio Committee members present: Kevin Howard, County Manager; Cathy Smith, Finance 
Officer; Don Hoggard, Maintenance Director (came in later) 
 
Susanne Stallings, Clerk was also present. 
 
Commissioner Bob Kirby was present in the audience. 
 
Ag Building 
Mr. Howard noted he spoke with the architect about insulation.  He stated there is an option to use a 
spray material and the architect said this could be a separate project that would not impact the roof.  
He noted that the interior roof and walls would be sprayed. 
 
Commissioner McLaughlin stated this project could be considered in a future budget. 
 
Fishing Pier 
Mr. Howard stated the bathrooms should be finished by the end of the month. 
 
Walker Gym 
Mr. Howard noted that he will have to request another quote on the windows. He noted that there is a 
six month wait after ordering however this may allow the County to pay for the project over two fiscal 
years. 
 
Mr. Hoggard joined the meeting. 
 
Swain 
Mr. Howard noted he had to work with the NCACC regarding the insurance claim. He stated the initial 
settlement was reduced by the insurance because of the FEMA monies. He stated that it looks like the 
County will get $50,000. He said it looks like the County will get $150,000 and the Association will 
pay the difference.  
 
Mr. Hoggard stated he got quotes on replacement of the windows on the Church Street side. He stated 
that most of the windows are not repairable and have to be replaced.  
 
Commissioner McLaughlin stated he felt there are several windows that could be repaired rather than 
replaced.  
 
Mr. Hoggard stated there is nothing to salvage on the Church Street side.  
 



Commissioner McLaughlin recommended Mr. Hoggard contact the company that did the windows on 
the apartment side of Swain, he stated he would get the contact information to Mr. Hoggard. 
 
Library 
Mr. Hoggard noted the courtyard side entrance repair is complete.  He noted that repairs have been 
made to the guttering.  He said that scaffolding will be needed to make the repairs to the front 
windows. He stated that it is several months out on the work to the door to window conversion and 
could be 17 weeks before the window comes in.  
 
Ms. Stallings noted that a permit will be needed from the Preservation Commission. 
 
Register of Deeds and Clerk of Court 
Mr. Hoggard said that all the work will soon be done. The glass has been received and the frames are 
here. He stated it will take two weekends to complete the installation as this has to be done when there 
is no public in the building. 
 
PSC Parking Lot 
Commissioner McLaughlin asked about getting estimates to replace the dead trees. 
 
Mr. Howard stated that there are repairs needed in the parking lot. He noted that one sink hole was 
repaired and another hole is forming in the same area. 
 
Commissioner McLaughlin suggested that staff have Lazy Weekends look at redoing the beds and 
trees in the parking lot. 
 
Committee members discussed concerns for roots from some trees causing damage to the parking area 
pavement. 
 
Commissioner McLaughlin asked about the work on the lock system. 
 
Mr. Howard stated that was completed last week. 
 
Northern Chowan Community Center (NCCC) 
Mr. Howard stated the unit has not been changed out. There is a second unit which needs replacing. 
He stated that cleaning to the building to remove the mold will be done after both units are replaced.  
 
Mr. Hoggard stated a company like ServePro will have to do the remediation and they quoted $80,000.  
 
Animal Shelter 
Mr. Hoggard stated that some work has been done by staff but there is some work required by the state 
which needs to be contracted. He noted that the coating needs to be redone in the kennels. He stated 
his staff is limited to do this work. He said that maintenance staff will be rewrapping the posts with 
vinyl.  
 
Mr. Howard stated that there is $30,000 budgeted for grading and he would like an engineered design 
for the parking lot. He stated he will ask Perquimans and Gates for the same match next fiscal year to 
get a design and estimate now and be able to proceed with the work.  
 
Jail 
The question was asked if the CIP Committee would work on this project.  
 
Ms. Stallings noted a committee was established for the jail project but has been inactive.  



 
The next meeting is December 8th at 4:00pm. The Clerk will email the date to the committee members. 
 
Being no further business, the committee meeting was adjourned. 
 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________________  ______________________________ 
Larry McLaughlin, Chair     Susanne Stallings, Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 



To: FYI - Board of Commissioners MBA #: 1920-082

From: Cathy Smith, Finance Officer

Date:

RE: Budget Clean-up

Retirement (29.89)                    
Employee Benefits 29.89                     

Salaries - PT 694.75                   
Fica 81.79                     
Contract Services (775.00)                 
Food & Provisions (1.54)                      

Tipping Fee 16,704.05               
Solid Waste Disposal Tax 1,090.31                 
Scrap Tire Grant 3,836.76                 
Interest Earned 1,173.15                 
Fund Balance Appropriation 95,337.87               
Cont Regional Authority 118,142.14           

Contribution from School Capital Fund 61,867.50               
CMS - Pump Station Repairs 61,867.50             

Fund Balance Appropriation 26,675.05               
Cont. to School Capital Projects 26,675.05             

FEMA Reimbursement 71,347.32               
FEMA Reimbursement - Dorian 15,166.38               
Insurance Proceeds 40,254.05               
Dillard's Millpond 72,695.00             
Repairs - SR Center Contents 38,132.04             
Repairs - SR Center Building 2,959.59               

62-3990-990-00
62-4710-690-00

School Capital
40-3990-990-00
40-5913-850-00

Capital Projects
32-3810-040-00
32-8100-586-00

Disaster Recovery
41-3301-230-00
41-3301-230-01
41-3493-890-00
41-4930-394-00
41-4935-355-00
41-4935-355-01

Solid Waste
62-3471-510-00

62-3831-491-00

11-6131-192-00
11-6131-221-00

62-3471-520-00
62-3471-530-00

Admin/Finance
11-4120-182-00
11-4120-313-00

After School Plus
11-6131-126-00
11-6131-181-00

Chowan County 
MANAGEMENT BUDGET AMENDMENT

September 30, 2020

Please authorize the finance officer to amend the 2020 budget as follows:

Account Number Account Description
 Revenue 

(Inc+/Dec-) 
 Expense 

(Inc+/Dec-) 



Account Number Account Description
 Revenue 

(Inc+/Dec-) 
 Expense 

(Inc+/Dec-) 
Salaries/Benefits - Dorian 4,436.52               
Departmental Supplies - Dorian 1,005.91               
Contract Services - Dorian 7,538.69               

333,452.44             333,452.44           

Justification:

Approval Date:

Bd. Clerk's Init:

Initials:

Batch #:

Date:

41-4936-440-00

Budget Clean-up for FY 06/30/20

41-4936-120-00
41-4936-299-00





















To: FYI - Board of Commissioners MBA #: 2021-013

From: Cathy Smith, Finance Officer

Date:

RE: CARES Act Relief Funds

CARES Act Relief Fund
Cares Act Relief (County) 397,035.65             
Cares Act Relief (County) 182,669.65           
Cares Act Relief (Small Business Grant) 214,366.00           
Cares Act Relief (EMS) 11,914.39               
Cares Act Relief (EMS) 11,914.39             

Balanced 408,950.04             408,950.04           

Justification:

Approval Date:

Bd. Clerk's Init:

Initials:

Batch #:

Date:

To amend the 2021 budget to inlude carry-forward balance from 2020 for 
CARES Act Relief Fund

26-4937-990-00

Chowan County 
MANAGEMENT BUDGET AMENDMENT

October 6, 2020

Please authorize the finance officer to amend the 2021 budget as follows:

Account Number Account Description
 Revenue 

(Inc+/Dec-) 
 Expense 

(Inc+/Dec-) 

26-3301-233-00

26-3301-234-00

26-4937-000-00

26-4937-995-02



To: FYI - Board of Commissioners MBA #: 2021-014

From: Cathy Smith, Finance Officer

Date:

RE: Carry-Forward Balances

Fund Balance Appropriation 114,257.00             
Transfer to Capital Projects 114,257.00           

Capital Projects
Transfer from Capital Reserve 114,257.00             
Hotel Hinton 114,257.00           
Transfer from General Fund 146,874.66             
Fishing Pier Bathrooms 146,874.66           

Fund Balance Appropriation 146,874.66             
Transfer to Capital Projects 146,874.66           

DF Walker Renovations Fund
Fund Balance Appropriation 296,532.72             
Professional Services 85,624.05             
Contract Services 133,801.67           
Contingency 77,107.00             

Balanced 818,796.04             818,796.04           
-                         

Justification:

Approval Date:

Bd. Clerk's Init:

Initials:

Batch #:

Date:

To amend the 2021 budget to inlude carry-forward balances from 2020.

33-3990-990-00

36-8100-191-00
36-8100-440-00
36-8100-999-00

General Fund

11-9800-980-32
11-3990-990-00

36-3990-990-00

Chowan County 
MANAGEMENT BUDGET AMENDMENT

October 6, 2020

Please authorize the finance officer to amend the 2021 budget as follows:

Account Number Account Description
 Revenue 

(Inc+/Dec-) 
 Expense 

(Inc+/Dec-) 

32-8100-585-00
32-3810-033-00

32-8100-588-00
32-3810-011-00

Capital Reserve

33-9800-980-32



To: FYI - Board of Commissioners MBA #: 2021-015

From: Cathy Smith, Finance Officer

Date:

RE: Capital Projects - Current Year

Contr. From Capital Reserve 136,358.60             
Ag Building Roof Repairs 44,550.00             
Sheriff Radio Replacements 76,108.60             
Courthouse - HVAC Repairs 15,700.00             

Balanced 136,358.60             136,358.60           
-                         

Justification:

Approval Date:

Bd. Clerk's Init:

Initials:

Batch #:

Date:

To amend the 2021 budget to inlude projects for the current year to be 
funded from the Capital Reserve Fund - projects have been approved by 

BOCC.

Chowan County 
MANAGEMENT BUDGET AMENDMENT

October 8, 2020

Please authorize the finance officer to amend the 2021 budget as follows:

Account Number Account Description
 Revenue 

(Inc+/Dec-) 
 Expense 

(Inc+/Dec-) 

Capital Projects
32-3810-033-00
32-8100-603-00
32-8100-605-00
32-8100-454-00



To: FYI - Board of Commissioners MBA #: 2021-016

From: Cathy Smith, Finance Officer

Date:

RE: Senior Center Grant

Albemarle Comm - CARES (SR. Center) 2,814.00                 
Albemarle Comm - CARES (SR. Center) 2,814.00               

Balanced 2,814.00                 2,814.00               
-                         

Justification:

Approval Date:

Bd. Clerk's Init:

Initials:

Batch #:

Date:

To amend the 2021 budget to inlude Cares Relief Grant through Albemarle 
Commission for Senior Center.  

CARES Relief Fund
26-3301-235-00
26-4937-991-00

Chowan County 
MANAGEMENT BUDGET AMENDMENT

October 8, 2020

Please authorize the finance officer to amend the 2021 budget as follows:

Account Number Account Description
 Revenue 

(Inc+/Dec-) 
 Expense 

(Inc+/Dec-) 



To: Board of Commissioners BA #: 2021-017

From: Cathy Smith, Finance Officer

Date:

RE: Elections

Elections Grant 18,000.00               
NC Community Foundation Grant 18,000.00             

Balanced 18,000.00               18,000.00             
-                         

Justification:

Approval Date:

Bd. Clerk's Init:

Initials:

Batch #:

Date:

Chowan County 
BUDGET AMENDMENT

October 12, 2020

Please authorize the finance officer to amend the 2021 budget as follows:

Account Number Account Description
 Revenue 

(Inc+/Dec-) 
 Expense 

(Inc+/Dec-) 

Elections
11-3417-362-00
11-4170-601-00

To amend the 2021 budget for Board of Elections to inlude the Election 
Administration Assistance Fund Grant, which is a component fund of the 

North Carolina Community Foundation.



To: FYI - Board of Commissioners MBA #: 2021-018

From: Cathy Smith, Finance Officer

Date:

RE: Discretionary Income

*Preservation/Automation 742.66                     
*Dept Supplies - Auto/Pres 247.55                   
*Contr Svcs - Automation/Pres 247.55                   
*C/O - Auto / Pres 247.56                   

*State Special Funds 259.27                     
*State Special Expense 259.27                   
*Sheriff Executions 2,662.13                 
*Sheriff Executions 2,662.13               
*KIDS & COPS 9.18                         
*KIDS & COPS Expense 9.18                       
*Diving Donations 255.21                     
*Diving Donations Expense 255.21                   

*Donations - Chowan 1,680.00                 
*Donations - Gates 240.00                     
*Donations - Perquimans 2,455.06                 
*Donations - Other 109.53                     
*Donation - Expense 4,484.59               
*Adoption - Chowan 560.00                     
*Adoption - Gates 180.00                     
*Adoption - Perquimans 200.00                     
*Adoption - Other 700.00                     
*Contr Svcs - Spay/Neuter 1,640.00               
*A.W.A.R.E. Reimbursement 1,972.50                 
*A.W.A.R.E. Reimbursement 1,972.50               

*Livestock Program 8,252.90                 
*Livestock Program 8,252.90               

Chowan County 
MANAGEMENT BUDGET AMENDMENT

October 12, 2020

Please authorize the finance officer to amend the 2021 budget as follows:

Account Number Account Description
 Revenue 

(Inc+/Dec-) 
 Expense 

(Inc+/Dec-) 

Register of Deeds
11-3418-415-00
11-4180-298-00
11-4180-440-00
11-4180-511-00

Sheriff's Office
11-3431-233-00
11-4317-441-00
11-3431-235-00
11-4316-440-00
11-3431-243-00
11-4317-443-00
11-3431-244-00
11-4317-444-00

11-3438-895-02

Animal Shelter
11-3438-894-00
11-3438-894-01
11-3438-894-02
11-3438-894-03
11-4381-600-00
11-3438-895-00
11-3438-895-01

11-3438-895-03
11-4381-441-00
11-3438-897-00
11-4381-601-00

Cooperative Ext:
11-3495-379-00
11-4953-449-00



Account Number Account Description
 Revenue 

(Inc+/Dec-) 
 Expense 

(Inc+/Dec-) 

  
*Recreation Donations 572.50                     
*Donations - Dept Supplies 572.50                   
*Recreation Special Events 500.00                     
*Recreation Special Events 500.00                   

*Donations - Home Del Meals 25.00                       
*Donations - Home Del Meals 25.00                     
*Registration Fees Activities 206.00                     
*Activities - Dept. Supplies 206.00                   
*Healthways 432.00                     
*Healthways 432.00                   

Balanced 22,013.94               22,013.94             

Total Discretionary Income Received FYE 2021 36,990.63               

Justification:

Approval Date:

Bd. Clerk's Init:

Initials:

Batch #:

Date:

Senior Center

Recreation
11-3612-487-00
11-6130-299-01
11-3612-504-00
11-6132-453-00

11-3616-532-00
11-4268-904-01
11-3616-533-01
11-4268-299-01
11-3616-535-03
11-4268-352-02

To amend the 2021 budget to include Discretionary income received through 
September 2020.



To: Board of Commissioners BA #: 2021-019

From: Cathy Smith, Finance Officer

Date:

RE: Animal Control

Annie Lee Roberts Emergency Rescue Grant 1,000.00                 
Annie Lee Roberts Emergency Rescue Grant 1,000.00               

Balanced 1,000.00                 1,000.00               
-                         

Justification:

Approval Date:

Bd. Clerk's Init:

Initials:

Batch #:

Date:

Chowan County 
BUDGET AMENDMENT

October 12, 2020

Please authorize the finance officer to amend the 2021 budget as follows:

Account Number Account Description
 Revenue 

(Inc+/Dec-) 
 Expense 

(Inc+/Dec-) 

Animal Control
11-3439-363-00
11-4380-692-00

To amend the 2021 budget for Animal Control to inlude the Annie Lee Roberts 
Emergency Rescue Fund Grant, which is funded by the Sumerlee Foundation.













































































































 Actual + 
Encumbrances 

 Adjusted 
Budget 

 Available 
Budget 

% Budget 
Met

Revenues
Ad Valorem Taxes

Tax Penalty & Interest 9,839                   50,000               40,161               20%
Prior Year - R&P 53,903                150,000             96,097               35.9%
Current Year Levy - R&P 2,069,621           10,014,540        7,944,919          21%
Prior Year - MV 53                        -                      (53)                      100%
Current Year Levy - MV 212,147              1,029,163          817,016             21%

Total Ad Valorem Taxes 2,345,562           11,243,703        8,898,141          21%

Sales Tax
Article 39 Sales Tax 133,190              1,081,540          948,350             12%
Article 40 Sales Tax 77,067                695,641             618,574             11%
Article 42 Sales Tax 20,362                125,540             105,178             16%
Article 44 Sales Tax 19,524                202,674             183,150             10%

Total Sales Tax 250,143              2,105,395          1,855,252          12%

Other Taxes 975                      49,110               48,135               2%
Permits & Fees 63,651                363,000             299,349             18%
Departmental 132,344              667,011             534,667             20%
Miscellaneous 152,237              759,649             607,412             20%
Fund Balance Appropriations -                       1,196,004          1,196,004          0%

Total General Fund Revenue 2,944,912           16,383,872       13,438,960       18%

Expenditures
Education Expenses 1,013,358           4,390,785          3,377,427          23%
Governmental Expenses 997,951              2,654,939          1,656,989          38%
Human Services Expenses 315,079              1,362,109          1,047,030          23%
Other Expenses 67,646                331,267             263,622             20%
Public Safety Expenses 1,040,802           4,055,855          3,015,053          26%
Transfer to Social Services -                       869,054             869,054             0%
Transfer to Re-Val -                       131,240             131,240             0%
Transfer to Debt Service 104,479              1,624,900          1,520,422          6%
Transfer to Capital Projects 55,462                -                      (55,462)              100%
Transfer to EMS -                       963,723             963,723             0%

Total General Fund Expenditures 3,594,776           16,383,872       12,789,096       22%
Net General Fund (11) (649,864)             -                      

Chowan County

General Fund
Year-to-Date through 9/30/20

Revenue/Expenditure Summary



 Actual + 
Encumbrances 

 Adjusted 
Budget 

% Budget 
Met

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS:
General Fund (Fund 11, 12)

Revenues 3,160,200         18,246,962       17.3%
Expenditures 4,161,499         18,246,962       22.8%

Net General Fund (1,001,299)        -                     

Revaluation Fund (Fund 25)
Revenues 23                       231,240             0.0%
Expenditures 227,364             231,240             98.3%

Net Revaluation Fund (227,341)           -                     

Debt Service Fund (30)
Transfers In 104,479             1,728,473         6.0%
Expenditures 208,052             1,728,473         12.0%

Net Debt Service Fund (103,573)           -                     

Capital Project Fund (32)
Revenues 163,869             24,409               671.3%
Expenditures 188,278             24,409               771.3%

Net Capital Project Fund (24,409)             -                     

Capital Reserve Fund (33)
Revenues 194,837             324,409             60.1%
Expenditures 108,407             324,409             33.4%

Net Capital Reserve Fund 86,430               -                     

DF Walker Renovation Fund (36)
Revenues -                     -                     0.0%
Expenditures 91,799               -                     100.0%

Net DF Walker Renovation Fund (91,799)             -                     

School Capital Reserve (40)
Revenues 84,218               755,349             11.1%
Expenditures -                     755,349             0.0%

Net School Capital Reserve 84,218               -                     

Hurricane Recovery Fund (41)
Revenues 134,445             -                     100.0%
Expenditures -                     -                     0.0%

Net Hurricane Recovery 134,445            -                     

Chowan County

Year-to-Date through 9/30/20
Revenue / Expenditure Summary by Fund



 Actual + 
Encumbrances 

 Adjusted 
Budget 

% Budget 
Met

Chowan County

Year-to-Date through 9/30/20
Revenue / Expenditure Summary by Fund

Lottery Proceeds Fund (49)
Revenues -                     103,573             0.0%
Expenditures -                     103,573             0.0%

Net Lottery Fund -                     -                     

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS:
Fire Districts (23)

Revenues 115,941             717,845             16.2%
Expenditures 40,255               717,845             5.6%

Net Fire Districts 75,685               -                     

E-911 Fund (24)
Revenues 43,606               261,498             16.7%
Expenditures 142,752             261,498             54.6%

Net E-911 Fund (99,146)             -                     

Cares Act Relief Fund (26)
Revenues 270,605             270,605             100.0%
Expenditures 440,241             270,605             162.7%

Net Cares Act Relief Fund (169,636)           -                     

ENTERPRISE FUNDS:
Water Dev. Capital Reserve (22)

Revenues 142                    5,000                 2.8%
Expenditures -                     5,000                 0.0%

Net Water Dev Capital Reserve 142                    -                     

EMS (60)
Revenues 179,065             1,865,649         9.6%
Expenditures 453,110             1,865,649         24.3%

Net EMS Fund (274,046)           -                     

Water (61)
Revenues 478,117             1,701,582         28.1%
Expenditures 533,657             1,701,582         31.4%

Net Water Fund (55,539)             -                     

Solid Waste (62)
Revenues 256,837             1,176,093         21.8%
Expenditures 259,003             1,176,093         22.0%

Net Solid Waste Fund (2,166)                -                     



8/31/2020 9/30/2020
Increase / 
(Decrease)

Cash Accounts
Petty Cash - General Fund 200                          200                          -                          
Petty Cash - Water Department 150                          150                          -                          
Cash on Deposit - Southern Bank 1,550,497              491,832                  (1,058,665)             

Total Cash Accounts 1,550,847              492,182                  (1,058,665)             

Investment Accounts
Investment - BB&T 503,396                  503,480                  84                            
Investment - BB&T - Project Fund - DF Walker 211,713                  211,717                  4                              
Investment - NCCMT Portfolio 6,774                      6,775                      0                              
Investment - NCCMT Term 2,143,910              2,144,081              171                          
Investment - NCCMT Term / School QZAB 392,794                  392,826                  31                            
Investment - PNC Money Market - 3652 51,183                    51,186                    2                              
Investment - PNC Money Market - 8893 50,804                    50,791                    (13)                          
Investment - Southern Bank - Money Market 6,479,412              7,430,405              950,993                  
Investment - Southern Bank - SunEnergy 108,000                  108,000                  -                          
Investment - Southern Bank - SunEnergy 100,000                  100,000                  -                          
NCCMT Term Portfolio 614,341                  614,390                  49                            

Total Investment Accounts 10,662,328            11,613,649            951,321                  

Total Cash & Investments 12,213,174            12,105,831            (107,343)                

Chowan County
Cash and Investment Summary

9/30/2020


	Agenda
	3a- Sept 21 Minutes
	3a- Sept 29 Minutes
	3a- Oct 5 Minutes
	3a- Oct 6 Minutes
	3b- Budget Clean UP
	3c- Tax Refund Release
	5-BA2021-013
	5-BA2021-014
	5-BA2021-015
	5-BA2021-016
	5-BA2021-017
	5-BA2021-018
	5-BA2021-019
	6- Juneve Vessel Info/quote
	6- Non Congregate Shelter
	6- Debris Contract
	6- Evacuation Zone Info
	6- Water Tank Corral Lease
	7- IT Surplus
	9- Finance Report



